# **Chariton Valley Transportation Planning Affiliation**

# **Public** Participation Plan | FY 2016

Region 17 - Guidelines for Involving the Public in Decision-Making Processes Related to Intermodal Transportation Elements serving Appanoose, Clarke, Davis, Decatur, Lucas, Monroe & Wayne counties.

Update: October 2015

Prepared By: Chariton Valley Planning & Development Council 308 North 12th Street

Centerville, Iowa 52544 Telephone: 641-437-4359 Fax: 641-437-1161

Email: nmoore@charitonvalleyplanning.com Website: www.charitonvalleyplanning.com

# **Table of Contents**

Section 1:	Purpose		3
	TEA 21 & MAP 21 Summary	3-4	
Section 2:	Regulations & Requirements		6-7
	Title VI, ADA and Environmental Justice	7	
	Open Meeting Law	8	
	Public Records Law	8	
Section 3:	Public Participation Development		8-9
	Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP)	8-9	
	Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP)	10-11	
	Transportation Planning Work Plan (TPWP)	12-13	
	Public Participation Plan (PPP)	12-13	
	Passenger Transportation Plan (PTP)	13-14	
	Review of CVTPA Document Development	14-15	
Section 4:	CVTPA Activities		15
	SAFETEA-LU/MAP-21		16
Section 5:	How to Get Involved		17
Section 6:	Participants in the Transportation Planning Process		18-19
Section 7:	CVTPA Background		20
	Bylaws	20-22	
	Sample Public Meeting Notice	23	
Section 8:	Resolution		24
Section 9:	Acronyms		25

<sup>\*\*</sup>The preparation of this Public Participation Plan was financed in part through federal funding provided by the US Department of Transportation, the Federal Highway Administration, and/or Federal Transit Administration.

# **Section 1: Purpose**

The purpose of this document is to identify the Chariton Valley Transportation Planning Affiliation's (CVTPA) options, ideas, guidance, resources, and support in the development of its public involvement processes.

Under the 1998 Transportation Equity Act for the 21<sup>st</sup> Century (TEA 21), governments are directed to continue to solicit public involvement as initiated under the Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act (ISTEA) of 1991. The Chariton Valley TPA recognizes that transportation choices are important to the shaping of economic development and quality of life. With this in mind, the following process includes all interested parties, greatly considers their input, and attempts to boost the public understanding and support for activities that improve transportation networks.

#### **ISTEA**

The ISTEA legislation (Iowa creation not federal) implemented in 1991 was passed as a means to develop a National Intermodal Transportation System. The Regional Planning Affiliation (RPA), in Region 17 of the State of Iowa, known as the Chariton Valley TPA consists of a body of officials representing transportation interests in the counties of Appanoose, Clarke, Davis, Decatur, Lucas, Monroe, and Wayne and the City of Centerville. Each RPA was directed under ISTEA to develop a long range (20 year) plan and a short-range (three year) transportation improvement program (TIP) for their respective areas. ISTEA shifted some responsibility for transportation planning from the state to the regional and local levels and required transportation planners to consider alternatives to constructing roads including: transit, transportation management, high occupancy vehicle facilities, park-and-ride lots, biking, walking, and intermodal connectors.

Federal rules and regulations specified under ISTEA that the RPAs facilitate public involvement. By providing the opportunity for public input into the decision-making process, it is expected that regional transportation planning and programming operations can be enhanced.

#### **TEA 21**

The TEA 21 legislation calls for continued public involvement as initiated under ISTEA. Key priorities for the TEA 21 legislation as outlined by President Clinton include: improving safety, protecting public health and the environment, and creating opportunity for all Americans. It provides record levels of investment to continue rebuilding America's highways and transit systems, doing so within a balanced budget.

The Chariton Valley TPA firmly believes that the people who use a transportation system, or are affected by it, should have an early and continuous voice in the decision-making process. As such, Chariton Valley TPA will play an active role in the solicitation of public comment by:

- -Promoting an atmosphere within government, which encourages citizen participation in local planning by providing information sharing and technical assistance as feasible;
- -Supporting outreach efforts by the State of Iowa in which RPAs can participate and which may serve as a part of the RPA public participation process, as appropriate;
  - -Monitoring the progress of required public participation within the region.

#### **MAP-21**

MAP-21, the Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Act (P.L. 112-141), was signed into law by President Obama on July 6, 2012. Funding surface transportation programs at over \$105 billion for fiscal years (FY) 2013 and 2014, MAP-21 is the first long-term highway authorization enacted since 2005.

MAP-21 is a milestone for the U.S. economy and the Nation's surface transportation program. By transforming the policy and programmatic framework for investments to guide the system's growth and development, MAP-21 creates a streamlined and performance-based surface transportation program and builds on many of the highway, transit, bike, and pedestrian programs and policies established in 1991.

#### **Extensions of MAP-21**

To allow more time for development and consideration of a long-term reauthorization of surface transportation programs, Congress enacts short term extensions of the expiring law, in this case, MAP-21.

#### **Public Participation Objectives**

Public participation has three primary objectives:

1. To gather information from the public;

Information gathering enables planners to more clearly define the demands and needs of the public so that the transportation system can better accommodate those who utilize and/or are impacted by the system. In this context, the term public may include economic developers, environmental organizations, private transportation providers, academic institutions, businesses, associations involved in transportation management, users and providers of transit, advocacy groups, the disabled, elderly, minorities, bicyclists, and many other concerned parties.

#### 2. To inform the public;

Informing the public enables the Chariton Valley TPA to provide information on the technical, financial, and legislative aspects of the region's transportation system. The availability of clear, accurate, and complete information presented for public review early and often can help alleviate the tension between public and transportation officials.

3. To develop a better transportation product;

Developing a better transportation product will be the result of continuous participation, making government more accountable and helping in avoiding delays in the final stages of transportation planning and implementation.

#### **Methods of Public Involvement**

Public meetings and/or hearings will occur at milestones in the planning process. Specific comment will be solicited for:

- -Transportation Improvement Program and updates (annually)
- -Long-Range Transportation Plan and updates (every 5 years or as needed)
- -Reviewing planning assumptions and the Plan development process (annually)
- -Plan amendments
- -Other major events or changes for transportation planning (i.e. change in federal legislation, major amendments to the public participation process, major investment corridor studies, etc.)

Advertisement for public meetings will take place as appropriate through notices to local newspapers, brochures, press releases, press conferences, direct mailings, etc. Notices will also be forwarded to communities and/or community leaders requesting such special notice. Meetings will be conducted in locations accessible to people with disabilities and in centralized locations when possible.

The Chariton Valley Transportation Planning Affiliation (CVTPA) will review and respond to written comments. Comments of a specific nature may be forwarded to appropriate agencies for action. Written comments will be incorporated into final documents and summarized into the appendices when possible.

A citizen's advisory committee, known as the Technical Committee, shall consist of community and business representatives as well as user groups involved in transportation will meet regularly. The

membership of the Technical Committee will represent a broad geographic range within the region and provide for ongoing public education and input in understanding the technical and legislative issues in transportation planning.

All planning documents will be maintained by the Chariton Valley Transportation Planning Affiliation and Chariton Valley Planning & Development Council (CVPD) and are available for review at the office of the Chariton Valley Planning & Development Council, 308 North 12<sup>th</sup> Street, Centerville, Iowa 52544.

#### Conclusion

The Chariton Valley Transportation Planning Affiliation (CVTPA) acknowledges the need for and value of soliciting input from the public throughout the regional transportation planning process. The RPA believes such involvement makes the region more able to produce short and long-range transportation plans that serve the needs of all interested parties. As a result, the CVTPA has adopted the aforementioned procedures and guidelines for assuring continued public involvement.

# **Section 2:** Regulations & Requirements

### **Regulations & Requirements**

Federal transportation legislation of recent years has included ISTEA, TEA-21, and SAFETEALU and the current MAP-21. All place a significant emphasis on public participation in the transportation planning process. The current federal legislation, MAP-21, was signed into law on July 6, 2012. President Obama signed into law P.L. 112-141, the Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Act (MAP-21). Funding surface transportation programs at over \$105 billion for fiscal years (FY) 2013 and 2014, MAP-21 is the first long-term highway authorization enacted since 2005. MAP-21 represents a milestone for the U.S. economy – it provides needed funds and, more importantly, it transforms the policy and programmatic framework for investments to guide the growth and development of the country's vital transportation infrastructure.

MAP-21 creates a streamlined, performance-based, and multimodal program to address the many challenges facing the U.S. transportation system. These challenges include improving safety, maintaining infrastructure condition, reducing traffic congestion, improving efficiency of the system and freight movement, protecting the environment, and reducing delays in project delivery.

MAP-21 builds on and refines many of the highway, transit, bike, and pedestrian programs and policies established in 1991. This summary reviews the policies and programs administered by the Federal Highway Administration. The Department will continue to make progress on transportation options, which it has focused on in the past three years, working closely with stakeholders to ensure that local communities are able to build multimodal, sustainable projects ranging from passenger rail and transit to bicycle and pedestrian paths.

The RTA adheres to the guidelines (23 CFR, Part 450.316(a)) for public participation. These include that the public involvement process is to be proactive and provide complete information, timely public notice, full public access to key decisions, and opportunities for early and continuing involvement. The process must meet the following requirements:

- Develop the participation plan in consultation with all interested parties.
- Provide adequate public notice of public participation activities and time for public review and comment at key decision points, including opportunities to comment on the LRTP and TIP.
- Provide timely notice and reasonable access to information about transportation issues and processes.
- Employ visualization techniques in the LRTP and TIP.
- Make public information such as technical information and meeting notices available through electronically accessible means and formats, such as the internet.
- Hold public meetings at convenient and accessible locations and times.
- Demonstrate consideration and response to public input received during the development of the LRTP and TIP.
- Seek out and consider the needs of those traditionally underserved by existing transportation systems.
- Provide additional opportunity for public comment for any changes that would affect versions of the original documents for LRTP and TIP.
- Coordinate with statewide transportation planning public involvement and consultation processes.
- Periodically review effectiveness of the procedures and strategies contained in the participation plan to ensure a full and open participation process.
- Include a summary of significant comments received on the draft LRTP and TIP as part of the final LRTP and TIP.
- Have a public comment period before the initial or revised participation plan is adopted by CVTPA.

#### Title VI, ADA, and Environmental Justice

CVTPA plans are required to be consistent with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which ensures that no person is excluded from participation in, denied benefit of, or subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal finance assistance on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, sex, disability, or religion. CVTPA plans also comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. This is a civil rights law that protects individuals from discrimination based on disabilities.

CVTPA plans must also observe Executive Order 12898: Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations. This requires that programs, policies, and activities that affect human health or environment should identify and avoid disproportionately high and adverse effects on minority and low-income populations. Environmental Justice aims to ensure that no racial, ethnic, or socioeconomic group bears a disproportionate share of negative environmental consequences resulting from governmental programs and policies.

#### **Open Meeting Law**

The Iowa Open Meeting Law (Iowa Code, Chapter 21) is designed to facilitate public access to government decisions. It applies to government bodies, including boards, councils, commissions, and task forces created by the state or its political subdivisions. The law defines what constitutes a meeting and lists requirements for public notices, agendas, meeting procedures, and minutes, as well as regulations concerning closed meetings.

CVTPA operates in accordance with the Open Meeting Law. The public is welcome and encouraged to attend CVTPA meetings. Regular meetings of the CVTPA Technical Committee and Policy Board occur on the third (3) Tuesday of the month starting at 12:30 p.m. (Meeting times and locations are subject to change.) CVTPA meeting notices and agenda are mailed or emailed out to region which requests the notifications. Information about CVTPA meetings, including minutes and agendas are available at the office of Chariton Valley Planning & Development Council located 308 North 12<sup>th</sup> Street, Centerville, Iowa 52544 or online at <a href="https://www.charitonvalleyplanning.com">www.charitonvalleyplanning.com</a>.

#### **Public Records Law**

The Iowa Public Records Law (Iowa Code, Chapter 22) provides for openness from government agencies with regard to public records. With the exception of certain confidential records, every person has the right to examine and copy public records. The CVTPA complies with the Public Records Law, and public documents are available for review at Chariton Valley Planning & Development Council office. Documents may be viewed during normal office hours, with nominal fee for copies.

# **Section 3: Public Participation Development**

This section will go over the details of the public involvement with each major document that CVTPA is responsible for.

#### **Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP)**

The LRTP guides transportation decisions for the next 20-30 years. It is updated every five (5) years and serves as a conduit for public input on a broad range of transportation issues. The LRTP considers all modes of transportation, as well as freight issues, safety issues, environmental issues, financial feasibility, and system operations and maintenance. It will contain a chapter that discusses the public involvement efforts and public comments on the document. The following actions will be undertaken to ensure that all sectors of the public are involved with the LRTP development.

#### **Draft LRTP**

- Input will be sought from citizens, affected public agencies, representatives of public transportation, freight shippers, providers of freight transportation services, private providers of transportation, users of public transportation, users of pedestrian walkways, representatives of the disabled, and other interested parties.
- Focus groups will be utilized to represent all pertinent modes of transportation and issues. Focus groups used will be transit, highway, land use, safety/security and environmental. They will be used to identify issues and potential solutions and review.
- The draft LRTP will be developed by Chariton Valley Planning & Development Council (CVPD), with further input from the CVTPA committees, boards and jurisdiction representatives as well as the Iowa DOT. Final review and approval will be from the CVTPA Technical Committee and Policy Board.

#### **Notices and Public Meetings**

- Public input sessions will be held regarding the draft LRTP.
- Sessions will be held in an area identified as low income or minority. All meetings will be held in accessible facilities.
- Notices for public input sessions will be posted and published through local media sources. Notices will be posted at CVPD offices as well as online to <a href="www.charitonvalleyplanning.com">www.charitonvalleyplanning.com</a>. Notices will also be sent to organizations serving those areas. Copies of the LRTP will be available at the office of CVPD and upon request.
- Any person needing special arrangements for reading, sight, or language barriers should contact the CVPD staff at least 24 hours prior to a session. Arrangements will be made to accommodate those needs.

#### **Public Comment Period**

- Written and oral comments will be solicited during the input sessions. The public will also have a 45 day comment period following the final public input session to submit comments via fax, email or mail.
- A public hearing will be held at a regularly scheduled CVTPA meeting following the public input sessions to summarize public comments and responses. A notice of the public hearing will be published and/or posted no more than 20 days and not less than four (4) days before the date of the hearing.

#### **Final LRTP**

- Following the public hearing, CVTPA will adopt the final version of the LRTP, including a summary of comments and responses.
- The final LRTP will be available on the CVPD website, at the CVPD offices, and upon request.
- The public participation process associated with the LRTP will be evaluated and updated as needed.

#### **Revisions**

- The LRTP is a long range transportation planning document, and all projects in the TIP should first be included in the LRTP. The TIP is updated annually, and the projects in it may be moved forward or backward in time or change in cost of scope. Therefore, the LRTP may be revised between full document updates to reflect those changes.
- Other amendments to the LRTP will be made as needed.
- Amendments will require a public hearing to be held at a regularly scheduled CVTPA meeting. A notice of the public hearing will be published.

#### **Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)**

The TIP includes a four (4) year street and highway improvement program, the urban transit capital and operating programs, the transportation enhancement program, and information on other Federal funding programs. It provides details on all significant transportation projects in the area that are receiving federal aid, including their costs, aid received, and stage of completion. The following are actions that will be undertaken annually to ensure public involvement.

#### **Draft TIP**

• The draft TIP will be developed by the Technical Committee with input from the Policy Board. CVTPA meetings are open to the public.

#### **Notices and Public Meetings**

- Following the development of the draft TIP, public input will be sought to identify concerns or comments. Comments will also be gathered from Iowa DOT, members of cities and counties and Chariton Valley Planning & Development Council (CVPD).
- TIP content and public comments may be sought through public hearings that will be advertised through local media, and posts at CVPD and other governmental offices, public offices and on the CVPD website at www.charitonvalleyplanning.com.
- Notices will be sent to those areas of low-income, minority and elderly populations.
- Any person needing special arrangements for reading, sight, or language barriers should contact the CVPD staff at least 24 hours prior to a session. Arrangements will be made to accommodate those needs.

#### **Public Comment Period**

- Written and oral comments will be included. At least a 7 day comment period will follow the public hearing, during which comments will be accepted via fax, email or mail.
- A public hearing will be held at a regularly scheduled CVTPA meeting. A notice of the public hearing will be published and/or posted no more than 7 days and not less than two (2) before the date of the hearing.

#### **Final TIP**

- Following the public hearing, CVTPA will adopt the final version of the TIP, including a summary of comments and responses.
- The final TIP will be submitted to the Iowa DOT, the FHWA, and the FTA.
- The final TIP will be available on the CVPD website, at the office so of CVPD and upon request.
- The public participation process associated with the TIP will be evaluated and updated as needed.

#### **Revisions**

- The TIP is a document that may need to be revised in between annual updates. There are two (2) types of revisions administrative modifications and amendments.
  - Minor revisions may be made to the TIP as necessary throughout the year. These are considered administrative modifications, and may be made by CVPD staff without public review and comment or re-demonstration of fiscal constraint. CVPD will discuss administrative modifications with the Technical Committee and Policy Board but formal action will not be required.
  - O Major revisions may be made to the TIP as necessary throughout the year. These are considered amendments, and require public review and comment and Policy Board approval. A public hearing will be held at a regularly scheduled CVTPA meeting to consider and approve TIP amendments. A notice of the public hearing will be posted and/published.

The following is examples of how to determine whether a revision is an administrative modification or an amendment.

	Administrative Modification	Amendment
Project Cost	Federal aid changed by less	Federal aid changed to more
	than 30% and the total federal	than 30% or total federal aid
	aid increases less than	increases by more than
	\$2,000,000.	\$2,000,000.
Schedule Changes	Changes in schedule for	Adding or deleting a project
	projects in the first four (4)	from the first four (4) years of
	years of the TIP.	the TIP
Funding Sources	Changes to the amounts of	Adding other federal funding
	existing funding sources.	sources to a project.
Scope Changes	Moving funding between	Changing project, ex. –
	existing stages of project	number of lanes, location, or
	scope, such as from design to	significant changes to the
	construction.	project type, such as changing
		an overlay to reconstruction.
Amendment Charge	None	\$500 after the 1 <sup>st</sup> request.

#### **Transportation Planning Work Program (TPWP)**

The TPWP outlines work elements for the transportation planning program for the coming year. Within each of the work elements specifics tasks are identified by the objective, pervious work performed and a description of the task, the desired outcome, and the measurement tools. Examples of items included in the TPWP include CVTPA administration and coordination, TIP and LRTP development and updates, and involvement in evaluation, planning, and research aspects of various transportation initiatives.

#### **Draft TPWP**

- The draft document will be prepared by CVPD with input from the Iowa DOT. Oversight will be from the Technical Committee and Policy Board.
- Any special projects requested by board.
- The draft will be available for review at the office of CVPD or upon request.

#### **Public Comment Period**

- The public may comment on the draft TPWP following the completion of the TPWP. The draft TPWP will be adopted at a regularly scheduled meeting.
- Notices and agendas of the CVTPA meetings will be available through requests from CVPD offices.

#### **Final TPWP**

- The CVTPA Policy Board will consider a summary of comments and appropriate responses and adopt the final version of the TPWP.
- The TPWP will be submitted to the Iowa DOT, the FHWA, and the FTA and made available on the CVPD website or upon request.

#### **Revisions**

- Revisions to the TPWP will be made as needed.
- Amendments will require a public hearing to be held at a regularly scheduled CVTPA meeting.

#### **Public Participation Plan (PPP)**

The PPP (current document) outlines processes for involving the public in CVTPA document development and decision-making. It covers regulations concerning public involvement, the five (5) major documents produced by CVPD (LRTP, TIP, TPWP, PPP, and PTP), and ways that CVPD & CVTPA will attempt to solicit public participation in transportation planning.

#### **Draft PPP**

- Input for the draft PPP will be sought from all interested parties. Input may be sought
  through regular CVTPA meetings, public hearings, surveys, focus groups, and other
  effective means of communicating with the public. The draft PPP will be prepared by
  CVPD with input from CVTPA representatives and Iowa DOT. Oversight from
  Technical Committee and Policy Board will also take place.
- Notice of draft PPP is available at the office of CVPD or upon request.

#### **Public Comment Period**

- The public may comment of the draft PPP after a regularly scheduled CVTPA meeting. Comments may also be accepted via fax, mail or email.
- Notices and agendas of CVTPA meetings may be available through local posts at
  governmental offices, public offices or through local media. They may also be requested
  from the CVPD office. Notice will also be published in the local newspaper Daily
  Iowegian.
- 45 day comment period to approve.

#### **Final PPP**

- The CVTPA Policy Board will consider a summary of comments and appropriate responses and adopt a final version of the PPP.
- The PPP will be submitted to the Iowa DOT, the FHWA, and the FTA and made available at the office of CVPD or upon request.

#### Revisions

 The PPP will be updated as needed. Minor revisions will be made in consultation with the Policy Board. Major revisions will be considered an updated following the process outlined.

#### Passenger Transportation Plan (PTP)

The PTP is the outcome of an effort to bring passenger transportation providers and human services agencies in the region together to better understand the available services. The result will be more effective or coordination efforts among the providers. The PTP includes a description of past and current passenger transportation services, strategies for enhancing those services. Through coordination a five (5) year sketch plan on projects is outlined. Public transit system projects are included in both the TIP and PTP. Transit programs submitted for funding through the Special Needs, New Freedom, or Job Access and Reverse Commute programs are derived from the PTP.

#### **Draft PTP**

- The draft PTP will be prepared by CVPD with input from the Transit providers, human service agencies, and users and advocates of transportation services.
- The draft PTP will be available for public review at the CVPD office or upon request.

#### **Public Comment Period**

- Comments on the draft PTP upon the completion of the plan at a regularly scheduled CVTPA meeting where adoption of the PTP will be considered. Comments will be accepted by fax, mail or email.
- Notices and agendas of CVTPA meetings may be available through local posts at governmental offices, public offices or through local media. They may also be requested from the CVPD office.

#### **Final PTP**

- The CVTPA Policy Board will consider a summary of comments and appropriate responses and adopt the final version of the PTP.
- The PTP will be submitted to the Iowa DOT and the FTA and made available at the CVPD office or upon request.

#### **Revisions**

• The PTP will be revised as necessary. A full document will be prepared every five (5) years, with annual updates on progress and projects provided in between full updates, as specified by the Iowa DOT. Revisions to specific projects will follow the same process and guidelines as administrative modifications and amendments for the TIP.

#### **Review of CVTPA Document Development**

Plan	Updated	Draft Development	Public Meetings/Draft Availability	Public Comments	Adoption	Availability
Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP)	Every five (5) years	Prepared by CVPD w/ input from CVTPA/focus groups	Public Hearing, draft available upon request	Following public hearing and after CVTPA regular meeting – 45 day comment period.	After public hearing during regular CVTPA meeting	CVPD office and website
Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP)	Annually	Prepared by CVPD w/input from Technical Committee	Draft available upon request	Following public sessions and after CVTPA regular meeting- 7 days	Public hearing during regular meeting	CVPD office and website
Transportation Planning Work Program (TPWP)	Annually	Prepared by CVPD with input from interested parties	Draft available upon request	After draft completion	Adopted at regular CVTPA meeting	CVPD office and website
Public Participation Plan (PPP)	As needed	Prepared by CVPD w/input from CVTPA.	Draft available upon request	After draft completion - 45 days	Adopted at regular CVTPA meeting	CVPD office and website
Passenger Transportation Plan (PTP)	Full document every five (5) yrs. w/annual updates	Prepared by CVPD w/input from Transit Directors and CVTPA	Draft available upon request	After draft completion	Adopted at regular CVTPA meeting	CVPD office and website

Input from the general public is always welcome during the draft development, at public meetings and during public comment periods and at regular CVTPA meetings. If the public is interested in attending the CVTPA meetings they may contact the office of Chariton Valley Planning & Development Council at 308 North 12<sup>th</sup> Street, Centerville, Iowa 52544 or by calling 641-437-4359. Meeting agendas and minutes, as well as draft and final CVTPA documents can be requested. They may also be found on the CVPD website: <a href="https://www.charitonvalleyplanning.com">www.charitonvalleyplanning.com</a>.

## **Section 4: CVTPA Activities**

#### **Regular CVTPA Activities**

In addition to public participation efforts related to the specific documents, there are several ongoing initiatives that form the CVTPA activities and interaction with the public. They may include the following:

- Monthly meetings, open to the public.
- Work sessions, focus groups, open houses, public input sessions, and public hearings, (as applicable) during the development of major documents.
- Publication of transportation articles and information in the CVPD newsletter, (when reestablished).
- Presentations to city councils, planning commissions, county supervisors as needed.
- Presentations to local service clubs and other groups or organizations as needed.
- Information and transportation plans available on the Chariton Valley Planning & Development Council website.

#### **Major Activities**

- Report distribution and public access availability may occur through; media distribution; governmental office access at CVPD, city halls, county courthouses, and access at public office locations in the region. Major reports will be available at the office of CVPD.
- Public presentations on major actions and projects will be made as required to City Councils, Planning and Zoning Commissions, Board of Supervisors, and the CVPD Board.
- Additionally, effort will be made to provide presentations to groups or organizations with a civic, modal, or geographical interest in the transportation plan, programs and projects.

# SAFETEA-LU/MAP-21 Requirements

SAFETEA-LU/MAP-21 Requirement	How CVTPA addresses the requirement
Develop the participation plan with interested parties.	Input for the draft document is sought from all interested
	parties. Input may be sought through regular CVTPA meetings, public meetings, public hearings, surveys.
Public Notice of public participation activities and time	Public hearings are held during regular CVTPA
for public review. Public comments for LRTP and TIP.	meetings for the LRTP and TIP. Will utilize public
	sessions, open houses with notices of times and locations
	listed.
Provide timely notice and reasonable access of	Notices for public hearings are published or posted
information about transportation issues and processes.	before the hearing. Major transportation documents, as well as information on current information will also be
	available on www.charitonvalleyplanning.com website,
	or upon request from the office of CVPD.
Employ visualization techniques in the LRTP and TIP.	Provide maps, graphs, charts, and photographs in the
	LRTP and TIP to enhance the understanding of the
	information provided. CVPD uses Geographic
Make public information such as technical information	Information System (GIS).  Meeting notices, agendas, minutes, as well as major
and meeting notices available electronically accessible	documents and information on current projects and
means and formats, such as the World Wide Web.	studies are available on CVPD's website.
Hold public meetings at convenient and accessible	Regular CVTPA meetings will be held the third (3 <sup>rd</sup> )
locations and times.	Thursday of the month. Locations are accessible and
	located centrally in the region. Public houses, and input
	sessions may be held at different times and locations to attract a wider audience.
Demonstrate explicit consideration and response to	Comments received for either document are distributed
public input received during the development of the	to and discussed by the Policy Board prior to document
LRTP and TIP.	adoption.
Seek out and consider the needs of those traditionally	Notices of meetings and documentation are sent to
underserved by existing systems.	organizations serving those populations. Sight, reading,
	and language assistance will be provided at public input
	sessions, open houses, and public hearings for individuals who request it at least 48 hours to time.
Provide an additional opportunity for public comment in	If the LRTP or TIP differs significantly from the version
the final LRTP or TIP differs significantly from the	that was originally made available for public comment,
versions presented.	an additional public comment period will be held.
Coordinate with the statewide transportation planning	The Iowa DOT, FHWA, and FTA will receive draft
public involvement and consultation processes.	documents and are invited to comment on them.
	CVTPA follow the guidelines set forth and provided by
Periodically review the effectiveness of the procedures	these agencies.  The PPP will be reviewed regularly and updated as
and strategies contained in the participation plan.	needed.
Include a summary of significant comments received on	Documents will include a listing of relevant comments
the draft LRTP and TIP as part of the final LRTP and	and responses during the draft review.
TIP.	

# **Section 5:** How to Get Involved

#### **How to Get Involved**

The public is encouraged to discuss transportation concerns at any time with local officials and planners. Specific contact with the CVTPA can be made through the Chariton Valley Planning & Development Council office.

#### CVPD – Transportation Department

- Nichole L. Moore, Executive Director: <a href="mailto:nmoore@charitonvalleyplanning.com">nmoore@charitonvalleyplanning.com</a>
- Julie Pribyl, Program Support Specialist, <a href="mailto:jpribyl@charitonvalleyplanning.com">jpribyl@charitonvalleyplanning.com</a>

Chariton Valley Planning & Development Council (CVPD)

308 North 12<sup>th</sup> Street Centerville, Iowa 52544 Phone: 641-437-4359 Fax: 641-437-1161

Website: <a href="https://www.charitonvalleyplanning.com">www.charitonvalleyplanning.com</a>
Hours: Monday – Friday 9 am to 4 pm

# **Section 6: Participants in the Transportation Planning Process**

## **Participants in the Transportation Planning Process**

The following is a list of those participants involved in the transportation planning process. Others interested in participating in the transportation decision-making process shall be added as requested, under the direction of the Policy Board.

- CVTPA Policy Board
- CVTPA Technical Advisory Committee
- Media Contacts
- CVPD staff

#### **EXECUTIVE POLICY BOARD MEMBERS**

The Executive Policy Board is a group of elected officials appointed to CVTPA by member counties and cities within the region to determine all policy and make all decisions on behalf of the seven-county entity.

Name	Title	County, City or Agency
Neal Smith	Board of Supervisor	Appanoose County
Jan Spurgeon	Mayor	City of Centerville
Marvin McCann	Board of Supervisor	Clarke County
Ron Bride	Board of Supervisor	Davis County
JR Cornett	Board of Supervisor	Decatur County
Dennis Smith, Chair	Board of Supervisor	Lucas County
Vern Vogel	City Councilperson	City of Chariton
Dennis Amoss	Board of Supervisor	Monroe County
Tom Murphy	Mayor	City of Albia
John Sellers	Board of Supervisor	Wayne County

#### TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The Technical Advisory Committee is composed of county engineers, economic development professionals, and transit directors from the seven-county region. The committee is responsible for prior reviewing and recommending policies and programs to the Executive Policy Board.

Name	Title	County, City or Agency
Matt Haden	County Engineer	Appanoose County
Bill Buss	Economic Development	Appanoose Co. Econ. Dev.
Dan Doerfler	County Engineer	Decatur County
David Dotts	Economic Development	Wayne County Econ. Dev.
David Grove	County Engineer	Davis County
Ted Henderson	Public Works Director	City of Bloomfield
Tom Andersen	County Engineer	Clarke County
Todde Folkerts, Chair	County Engineer	Lucas County
Joe Gaa	City Manager	City of Chariton
Jeremiah Selby	County Engineer	Monroe County
Dan Tometich	Economic Development	Monroe Co. Econ. Dev.
Trevor Wolf, Vice-Chair	County Engineer	Wayne County
Jay Allison	Transit Director	10-15 Transit
Leesa Lester	Transit Director	Southern Iowa Trolley

#### Regional Median Contacts

- Daily Iowegian Ad- Express
- KCGO-KMGO radio
- Corydon Times
- Chariton newspaper
- Albia newspaper
- Albia radio
- Chariton radio
- Osceola newspaper
- Davis Co, newspaper
- Davis Co. radio
- Moulton Tribune
- Moravia Union
- Seymour Herald
- Ottumwa Courier if needed
- Des Moines Register if needed

#### **CVPD Staff**

- \* Nichole L. Moore, Executive Director
- \* Julie Pribyl, Program Support

# **Section 7: CVTPA Background**

This section will show the current By-laws, and sample public meeting notice for meetings.

#### **BYLAWS**

#### CHARITON VALLEY TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AFFILIATION-POLICY BOARD

#### **ARTICLE I. - NAME**

Section 1. The name of this board shall be The Chariton Valley Transportation Planning Affiliation Policy Board and hereinafter be referred to as the Board.

#### **ARTICLE II. - PURPOSE**

- **Section 1.** The Board shall serve as the principal policy organization for purposes of compliance to the Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991 and subsequent amendments to the Act. The Board shall have the power and duty to make comprehensive transportation studies and plans for the development of the area it serves which will guide the unified development of the area and which will eliminate planning duplication and promote economy and efficiency in the coordinated development of the area and general welfare, convenience, safety, and prosperity of its people.
- **Section 2.** The Board shall also have the power of making policy decisions concerning the development of safe, fast, efficient, and coordinated transportation systems subject to the approval of the respective jurisdiction's governing body.
- **Section 3.** The Board shall annually adopt a three-year Transportation Improvement Program, (TIP) and adopt the Long-Range Plan as amended.
- **Section 4.** The Board shall allocate federal-aid funds to eligible projects within the Selection Year of the TIP.

#### ARTICLE III. - MEMBERSHIP

- **Section 1.** The membership of this Board will include two persons from each county who are the designated representatives of the cities and counties of the planning district, listed as follows; Appanoose, Clarke, Davis, Decatur, Lucas, Monroe, and Wayne. These persons must be local elected officials of the jurisdiction they represent. The county supervisors will submit the representative names in writing to the Chariton Valley Transportation Planning Affiliation. Additionally, there will be 1 representative from the City of Centerville, and a representative from the 10-15 Transit Agency and Southern Iowa Trolley.
- **Section 2.** Each member to the Board shall have a term of two years beginning the dates of January 1, 1995, for city representatives, and January 1, 1996, for county representatives. Each county will then appoint or re-appoint Board representative(s) accordingly.
- **Section 3.** All vacancies occurring in the Board shall be filled by appointment by that particular county's board of supervisors. The representative so appointed shall serve according to Article III. Section 2.
- **Section 4.** Ex-officio membership will include an Iowa Department of Transportation (IDOT) Representative, two Transit Operators, and one Engineer.

#### ARTICLE IV. BUDGET AND APPORTIONMENT OF COSTS

- Section 1. The RPA budget shall be based on the annual work program for a fiscal year beginning July 1 and ending June 30. Costs for the RPA shall be shared equally by each member jurisdiction in accordance to federal guidelines.
- Section 2. The RPA shall by January 31 of each year determine a preliminary work program and budget for the RPA's next fiscal year, together with member assessments, and submit this information to all member jurisdictions. The final work program and budget shall be approved no later than June 1 by the RPA. Member dues assessments determined and requests for funds submitted to member jurisdictions within thirty (30) days following RPA approval of the work program budget. Member dues shall be paid within sixty (60) days of notification unless otherwise determined by the RPA.

#### **ARTICLE V. - OFFICERS**

- **Section 1.** The officers of the Board shall be: a Chairperson whose duties shall be to preside at all meetings and call special meetings; a Vice Chairperson who shall perform the duties of the Chairperson in his or her absence or inability to act; a Secretary who shall keep a full record of the proceedings of the Board and of its committees and shall perform such other duties as the Board may from time to time direct.
- **Section 2.** The Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, and Secretary shall be elected from the membership of the Board each year for a term of one year at the first regular meeting in January of each year.
- Section 3. In the event of a vacancy, a new officer shall be appointed by a majority vote of the Board.

#### **ARTICLE VI. - MEETINGS**

- **Section 1.** The Board shall meet at least bimonthly. Special meetings may be called by the Chairperson or by any six (6) members of the Board. Business may be conducted via telephone, facsimile, electronic mail, or other medium so long as the use of such media serve to assure the timely action of Board business and do not serve to interrupt public participation efforts.
- **Section 2.** The Chairperson of the Board shall mail or direct the delivery of written notice of each regular meeting to each member of the Board in accordance with Chapter 28A "Official Meetings Open to Public" of the Iowa Code. Notice of special meetings shall state the purpose for which such meeting is called and shall be called or delivered at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting time.
- **Section 3.** Board meetings shall be conducted in accordance with Robert's Rules of Order.
- **Section 4.** Board meetings shall be open to the public and conform to the requirements of Chapter 21 of the Code of Iowa.

#### ARTICLE VII. - QUORUM

- **Section 1.** At any meeting of the Board, a quorum shall consist of forty (40) percent of the total voting membership of the Board or six (6) members.
- **Section 2.** The adoption of plans or amendments thereof shall be by majority of the Board's membership in attendance.

#### ARTICLE VIII. - VOTING POWER

- **Section 1.** Each board member representing a county and cities within the county shall have the power of one vote for a total of two per county.
- Section 2. The Iowa Department of Transportation and the ex-officio members will not have voting power.

#### **ARTICLE IX. - COMMITTEES**

**Section 1.** The Board may use such committees as may be necessary to carry out their duties. Committees may be appointed by direct action of the Chairperson or by action of the Chairperson upon motion of any member duly called.

**Section 2.** The standing committees of the Board shall be the Chariton Valley Transportation Affiliation Technical Committee and County Sub-committees.

- 1) The Technical Committee shall consist of seven County Engineers, seven at large members (each county's policy board members will choose who this representative will be), and two Transit Operators.
- 2) The Technical Committee shall be directly responsible to the Board for the initiation, review and recommendations of transportation and transportation related activities.
- 3) There shall be one Technical Committee vote for each member.
- 4) All matters requiring action by the Policy Board shall be submitted to the Technical Committee for their review and recommendation. Procedures for special meetings, as outlined for the Board, will be followed. Should the Technical Committee, in their review, make a negative recommendation or no recommendation to the Board, the affected person, committee or jurisdiction may request the Board's consideration of the matter by written request to the Chair of the Board.
- 5) The members of each County Sub-committee shall consist of the County Engineer, the two policy board members from the county, and an Economic Development Representative will be selected by the three Sub-committee members.
- 6) Each County Sub-committee shall: organize public input; develop county needs and priorities for regional plan; hold public meetings; and formally contact representatives of historic, civic, conservation, tourism, and other organizations with transportation interests. An application form shall be submitted for each project.

#### ARTICLE X. - AMENDMENT

Section 1. A majority vote of all members of the Board shall be required to amend these Bylaws.

**Section 2.** The proposed amendment shall be submitted in written form to the Board at any regular meeting. The secretary will mail or deliver a copy of the proposed amendment to each Board member not less than seven (7) days prior to the next regular Board meeting. The proposed amendment may be acted upon at the next regular meeting following the date of its submission.

The Bylaws of the Chariton Valley Transportation Planning Affiliation Policy Board are hereby passed and adopted this 21<sup>st</sup> day of June, 2011 in the County of Appanoose, Iowa.

Dennis J. Ryan, Chairperson Chariton Valley Transportation Planning Affiliation

ATTEST:

Nichole L. Moore, Notary Public

#### **Sample Public Meeting Notice**

# NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING FOR PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF PROPOSED REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLANS

YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED the Chariton Valley Transportation Planning Affiliation Board will hold a regional public participation meeting to gather public input on regional transportation needs and projects. The input will be considered in the development of the Regional Long-Range Transportation Plan (LRTP), the Passenger Transit Plan (PTP) and to be included in the election of projects for the Regional Transportation Improvement Program (TIP).

This meeting will be held on _	
	(Please specify date m/d/y)
at in t	<u> </u>
(Please specify time)	(Please specify location of meeting)
Chariton Valley Regional Tran	provide an opportunity for the public to propose or comment on projects to be included in the portation Planning Affiliation (CVTPA) plans. CVTPA will include both long-range and shorted to the development of an integrated, intermodal transportation system required by the region
	sportation Plan (LRTP) will forecast and coordinate the regional facilities and services needed in dentification of needs and issues of concern to the public is an important element of the plan.
	provement Program (TIP) includes a priority list of proposed surface transportation project ies, and transit programs to be carried out during the next 3-5 years by participating cities the state and others.
	public meeting will be given a reasonable opportunity to participate in the RTP developmer VTPA's approved Public Participation Plan (PPP).
•	eeting but have comments or would like to be involved in future public meetings, please call elopment Council at 641-437-4359.
We encourage comments about CVTPA, 308 North 12 <sup>th</sup> Street,	he LRTP and/or TIP to be written and mailed to Chariton Valley Planning & Development, Attr Centerville, Iowa 52544.
	COUNTY OF, IOWA
	(Your county name)
	Ву:
	(Specify name)
D 1	
Runs 1x	

# **Section 8: Resolution**

# Resolution

WHEREAS, governmental bodies in the seven-county region of Appanoose, Davis, Decatur, Clarke, Wayne, Monroe, and Lucas have established the Chariton Valley Transportation Planning Affiliation; and

WHEREAS, the Chariton Valley Transportation Planning Affiliation was organized by the seven-county region to fulfill the requirements of Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21<sup>st</sup> Century Act (MAP-21) legislation by granting greater public participation in the planning and programming of Surface Transportation Program (STP) and Transportation Alternative Program (TAP) funding; and

WHEREAS, the Chariton Valley Transportation Planning Affiliation recognizes the continued responsibility to educate and inform the public with continued public participation efforts as directed; and

WHEREAS, the Chariton Valley Transportation Planning Affiliation acknowledges the benefits of enhanced public involvement in the transportation planning process; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CHARITON VALLEY TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AFFILIATION;

To approve the public involvement plan and adopt the Chariton Valley Transportation Planning
Affiliation Public Participation Process as reviewed and recommended by the Chariton Valley
Transportation Planning Affiliation board.

Adopted on this	day of	, 2015.
Chairperson		
•	sportation Planning Affiliation	
Nichole I. Moore No	tary Public	

# **Section 9:** Glossary of Acronyms

ADA Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990

BROS Bridge Replacement Off Systems

CMAQ Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality

CVRED Chariton Valley Rural Economic Development, Inc.

CVTPA Chariton Valley Transportation Planning Affiliation

EPA Environmental Protection Agency

FHWA Federal Highway Administration

FTA Federal Transit Administration

GIS Geographic Information System

GPS Global Positioning System

IDOT Iowa Department of Transportation

ISTEA Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991

MAP-21 Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Act

LRTP Long Range Transportation Plan

MPO Metropolitan Planning Organization

NHS National Highway System

PB Policy Board

PIP Public Involvement Plan

RPA Regional Planning Affiliation

STP Surface Transportation Program

TAC Technical Advisory Committee

TEA 21 Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century (1998)

TIP Transportation Improvement Program

TPWP Transportation Planning Work Program